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I. Requirement to Register
A. Conviction Triggering Registration
i. General

a. People v. Hernandez, 166 Cal. App. 4th 641 (Cal. App. 2d Dist. 2008)

Hernandez (22 at the time of the offense) was convicted of oral copulation with a 14 year
old and ordered to register as a sex offender. Based on the decisions in Pegple v. Hofsheser, 129 P.3d
29 (2006) and People v. Garcia, 161 Cal. App.4™ 475 (2008), the court held that there was no “rational
reason” to treat him differently because the victim was 14, as opposed to 16, or 18—and his
mandatory registration provision was lifted.

b. Mayo v. People, 181 P.3d 1207 (Colo. Ct. App. 2008)

Mayo was indicted for sexual abuse of a minor and later civilly committed as a Sexually
Dangerous Person in Illinois in 1988. As part of that process, he stipulated that he committed ot
attempted to commit at least one act of sexual abuse. He was never found guilty of the offense and
was released from his commitment in 1995. In 2001 he asked to have his release conditions
terminated and the indictment dismissed, and that motion was granted by the court. However, as
part of the original disposition in 1988 he was still required to register as a sex offender.

He then moved to Colorado and challenged the requirement to registet under Colorado law.
- Colorado concluded that he was “convicted” for purposes of Colorado’s sex offender registration
law, and he was required to continue his registration obligations.

ii. Non-Sex Offense

a. People v. Knox, 903 N.E.2d 1149 (N.Y. 2009)

Knox and her co-petitioners had all been convicted of non-parental kidnapping of a minot.
Their due process challenge to being listed on the New Yotk Sex Offender Registry was rejected.

iii. Elements vs. Facts
a. Duran v. Maryland, 948 A.2d 139 (Md. App. 2008)
Because Duran was not convicted of an offense requiring registration, and the Matyland

offense of Indecent Exposure did not “by its nature [involve] a sexual offense against a person
under the age of 18 years”, he could not be ordered to register.
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iv. “Unlisted” Offenses
a. U.S.v. Jensen, 278 Fed. Appx. 548 (6" Cir. 2008)

Jensen was convicted of Complicity to Commit Sexual Abuse under Kentucky law. Sexual
Abuse is a listed offense requiring registration, and Jensen argued that she should not have to
register. Under an analysis of Kentucky law, a conviction of Complicity to commit the underlying
registration offense was sufficient to require registration.

b. U.S.v. Hahn, 551 F.3d 977 (10® Cit. 2008)

Hahn was convicted of a violation of 18 U.S.C. §656 (misapplication of financial institution
funds). He was ordeted to register as a sex offender as part of his probation requirements under 18
U.S.C. §3583(d) because of a state-level sex offense and conviction which occurred between his
arrest and sentencing on this federal charge. The court upheld the imposition of sex offender
tegistration requitements on Hahn. The case did not directly address SORNA.

c. State v. Haynes, 760 N.W.2d 283 (Mich. App. 2008)

. Where Haynes was convicted of bestiality, he could not be required to register as a sex
offender. He was convicted under a “crimes against nature”-style offense which only required
registration if “the victim is an individual less than 18 years of age”. Here, the victim sheep was not
an “individual” and, therefore, no registration was required.

d. U.S.v. Ybarra, 289 Fed. Appx. 726 (5" Cir. 2008)

Part of Ybarta’s probation violation was based on an unadjudicated sexual assault against his
gitlfriend. His original convictions were for drug offenses. Based on 18 U.S.C. §3583(d), however,
he was propetly ordered to register as a sex offender.

e. U.S.v. Byun, 539 F.3d 982 (9" Cir. 2008)

Byun was on probation for convictions which occurred prior to the passage of SORNA, and
was otdeted by het probation officer to register as a sex offender after its passage. She challenged
that otder. Byun had been originally convicted of alien smuggling under title 8 of the U.S. Code, but
the undetlying facts of the case had to do with bringing a minor to Guam for the purposes of
prostitution. Even though she was not convicted of a listed federal criminal offense under 42 U.S.C.
§16911, the court determined that she was still required to register as a sex offender.

f. Fountain v. State, 103 Ark. App. 15 (2008)
Where Fountain was convicted of an offense not specifically listed in Arkansas’ sex offender

registry scheme, he was still propetly required to register under its “catch-all” provision requiting
registration for conviction of a “sex offense even though the offense is not enumerated.”
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g. People v. Gutierrez, 2008 Mich. App. LEXIS 1082 (May 22, 2008)

Gutierrez was convicted of an offense which was not listed among those requiring
registration. Michigan had a ‘catch-all’ provision, however, requiring registration for any violation
that “by its nature constitutes a sexual offense against an individual” who is a minor. Under the
facts of this case, the offense did fulfill that definition, and Gutietrez should have been required to
register as a sex offender.

h. U.S.v. Jimenez, 275 Fed. Appx. 433 (5" Cit. 2008)

Whete Jimenez was convicted of a non-sexual offense, and had no prior sex offense arrests,
it was not apptoptiate to order him to register as a sex offender as a “special condition” of
supetvised release under 18 U.S.C. §3853(d) when the only indication of any sexual misconduct was
three unsubstantiated police reports—without more--complaining of child sexual abuse. The Coutrt
did indicate that it would likely be appropriate to order a sex offender evaluation to make a
determination regarding treatment and possible future registration requirements.

B. Out-of-state conviction

i. Generally

a. Commonwealth v. McBride, 281 S.W.3d 799 (Ky. 2009)

McBride was convicted of a sex offense in Tennessee and registered as a sex offender there.
He subsequently moved to Kentucky, and failed to register as a sex offender as required by
Kentucky law. Even though he was not specifically notified of his registration obligations in
Kentucky, the Coutt held that failure to register was a strict lability offense, and that he had an
absolute duty to register as a sex offender once he became a resident of Kentucky.

b. State v. Werneth, 197 P.3d 1195 (Wash. App. 2008)

Werneth was convicted of child molestation in Georgia in 1992. He subsequently moved to
Washington State. The court concluded that the Georgia conviction was not “comparable” to a
Washington Sex Offense and that Werneth, therefore, was not required to register as a sex offender.

c. Sharmayv. State, 670 S.E.2d 494 (Ga. App. 2008)

Sharma was convicted of second degree sexual assault in Texas in 2000. He subsequently
moved to Geotgia. The court concluded that the Texas conviction was not the “same or similar to”
a Geotgia sex offense which would require registration and that Sharma, thetefore, was not required
to register as a sex offender.

d. Stallworth v. Miss. Dep’t of Pub. Safety, 986 So. 2d 259 (Miss. 2008)

Stallworth was a Mississippi tesident, convicted of a sex offense in Maryland. The offense
for which he was convicted did not require tegistration in Maryland. In this civil action he
challenged Mississippi’s tequirement that he register as a sex offender. The Mississippi court found
that the totality of the evidence (including Stallworth’s sworn testimony in a civil proceeding and the
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Maryland plea colloquy) satisfied the definition of a Mississippi offense which required registration,
and he was required to register.

e. Doev. Pa. Bd. of Prob. & Parole, 513 F.3d 95 (3d Cir. 2008)

Pennsylvania’s registration scheme mandated community notification for offenders with out-
of-state convictions, where those with Pennsylvania convictions wete only subject to community
notification after a civil heating to determine if they were a ‘sexually violent predator’. This disparate
treatment was found to violate the equal protection clause and D’s 42 USC §1983 claim was granted.

f. Commonwealth v. Becket, 879 N.E.2d 691 (Mass. App. 2008)

Becker was convicted of a sex offense requiring registration in New York State in 1995. He
subsequently moved to Massachusetts. He was notified, in person, of his registry obligations once in
Massachusetts. Even though his New York conviction was a misdemeanor, Massachusetts’ “like
offense” was a felony and required registration, despite Becket’s conclusions from reviewing the sex
offender registry statutes to the contraty. The court also rejected his constitutional arguments
tegarding right to travel and cruel and unusual punishment.

ii. Classification of Offense
a. People v. Mann, 52 A.D.3d 884 (N.Y. App. Div. 3d Dep’t 2008)

Mann, convicted of a ptiot sex offense in California, moved from California to New York,
and argued that he either (1) shouldn’t be required to register as a sex offender or (2) shouldn’t be
classified in “risk level III”. The New Yotk court found that his prior conviction, number of
victims, and priot failure to register sufficed to require registration at level IIl. The court found the
record of the California coutt reliable hearsay for putposes of determining the issues in the case.

C. Federal SORNA and the Requirement to Register
i. Doe v. Keathley, 2009 Mo. App. LEXIS 4 (January 6, 2009)

Doe was convicted of a sex offense in Iowa in 1994 and moved to Missouri that same yeat.
Missouri’s sex offender registration laws have been limited to offenders convicted on or after
January 1, 1995, via the holding in Doe v. Phillips, 194 S.W.3d 833 (Mo. 2006). This coutrt held that
the Supremacy Clause, SORNA, and the retroactivity regulation of SORNA preempt Doe’s holding,
and that the SORNA requitement to register “is an obligation imposed by federal law.” Doe,
therefore, has to register as a sex offender in Missouri.

ii. Hudson v. Fed. Buteau of Prisons, 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 86987 (E.D. Mich. Oct.
28, 2008)

Hudson was a federal prisoner incarcerated on non-sex offenses. He had been previously
convicted of a state-level sex offense in Michigan in 1990. The Bureau of Prisons sought to notify
Michigan of Hudson’s requirement to register under SORNA, per 18 USC §4042(c). The fedetal
court concluded that the state offense was a Tier III offense under SORNA and that the appropriate
notice under {4042(c) must be given.
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iii. U.S. v. Rhone, 535 F.3d 812 (8" Cir. 2008)

Rhone was sentenced for a fitearms conviction. As a condition of his probation under 18
U.S.C. §3583(d), he was ordered to register as required by SORNA. The court did not specify,
though, the basis for that requitement. Rhone had been adjudicated delinquent of a (presumably)
state-level offense of “assault with intent to commit sexual abuse”. The Eighth Circuit held that,
before the sentencing court could impose a registration requirement, it had to affirmatively
determine that the juvenile adjudication qualified for registration under SORNA—and that the
decision could not be delegated to U.S. Probation or the Bureau of Prisons.

iv. Cameron v. U.S., 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 36587 (E.D. Va. May 5, 2008)

Here, Cameron was convicted of a drug offense, and was ordered to register as a sex
offender as a condition of probation under 18 U.S.C. §3553(d), based on a prior sex offense out of
California. The coutt upheld this requirement, citing U.S. ». Talbert, 501 F.3d 449 (5" Cir. 2007),
U.S. ». Rosario, 386 F.3d 166 (2d Cit. 2004), and U.S. ». Dupes, 513 F.3d 338 (2d Cir. 2008). It also
found that there was no Tenth Amendment violation because of the probation language which
required, in essence, “sex offender registration...if applicable”, making it clear that Cameton was
. simply tequired to comply with whatever state-imposed registration obligations are placed upon him.

D. Subsequent Amendments to Registration Statute
i. Jensen v. State, 905 N.E.2d 384 (Ind. 2009)

Whete petitioner was convicted and sentenced in 2001, and the only changes to the sex
offender registration and notification scheme since that time could fairly be characterized as ‘civil
and regulatory’ under the factors in Kennedy v. Mendoga-Martineg, 372 U.S. 144 (1963), retroactive
application of those amended provisions was not a violation of the Ex post facto clause.

II. Juvenile Registration
i. State v. Fletcher, 974 A.2d 188 (Del. 2009)

The two petitioners in this consolidated case had been ordered to register based on juvenile
adjudications for sex offenses. Each successfully completed theit periods of probation, asked for an
expungement of their convictions, and a termination of their juvenile registration tequirement. The
Court held that their convictions could be expunged even though they had been required to register
as sex offenders, and that once those convictions were expunged, they were no longer required to
maintain their sex offender registration.

ii. U.S.v.Pomani, 608 F. Supp. 2d 1131 (D. S.D. 2009)

Pomani was adjudicated delinquent in federal court of an offense which occurred on tribal
lands, namely, an offense similar to abusive sexual conduct (per the opinion, 18 U.S.C. 2241(c)).
The court held that juveniles adjudicated of this offense are required to register by SORNA, failing
to take in to account that SORNA’s final guidelines removed the registration requirement for
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juveniles adjudicated delinquent of 2241(c). Having held that Pomani was required to registet, the
coutt affirmed his conviction.

iii. In re: Z.B., 757 N.W.2d 595 (S.D. 2008)

In certain cases, South Dakota’s registration requitements for juveniles adjudicated
delinquent are mote onerous than those for similarly convicted adults. The court found an equal
protection violation undet both the federal and state constitutions, and rescinded the order tequiring
the juvenile to register as a sex offender.

iv. Clark v. State, 957 A.2d 1 (Del. 2008)

Plaintiff, a juvenile adjudicated delinquent of a sex offense and required to register under
Delaware law, challenged that lifetime registration requirement on the grounds that it conflicts with
other statutory provisions in Delaware that require the juvenile court to take the “best intetests of
the child” in to consideration when fashioning a disposition. This argument was rejected, as was the
argument regarding any privacy concerns.

v. Inre: C.P.T., 2008 Minn. App. Unpub. LEXIS 929 (Aug. 5, 2008)

Appellant’s challenge to the constitutionality of Minnesota’s statute requirting lifetime
tegistration for predatory sex offenders—as applied to juveniles—was rejected.

vi. In re D.H., 886 N.E.2d 1209 (Ill. App. Ct. 1* Dist. 2008)

Discusses recent legislative actions in Illinois (citing I re Rogelo S., 882 N.E.2d 612 (App. Ct.
I1l. December 26, 2007)) which eliminated the provision requiting juveniles to register as adult sex
offenders upon becoming an adult.

vii. In te Richard A., 946 A.2d 204 (R.I. 2008)

Richard A. was a juvenile adjudicated delinquent required to register as a sex offender, and
he challenged the constitutionality of the sex offender registration statute. The court found that the
registration requirements were constitutional as applied to juveniles. Of note, though, is their
statement that it was a “significant consideration” in their decision that in Rhode Island juvenile
registration information is only available to law enforcement and is not disseminated to the public.

viii. N.V.v. State, 2008 Ark. App. LEXIS 207 (Mazch 5, 2008)

Per Arkansas’ statutoty scheme (in addition to the guarantees made by the judge in this case),
a juvenile adjudicated delinquent of a sex offense was entitled to a due process hearing prior to being
requited to register as a sex offender.

ix. In re Crockett, 159 Cal. App. 4th 751 (Cal. App. 1% Dist. 2008)
Crockett was adjudicated delinquent of a penetration sex offense in Texas. He was placed

on probation and Texas agteed that he could move to California to live with his mother. One of his
ptrobation conditions was that he was required to register as a sex offender in California. Even
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though his probation was transferred via Interstate Compact, the court concluded that he was not
required to register as a sex offender in California according to California’s sex offender registration
statute. Therefore, he could not be prosecuted for failure to register.

ITI.Constitutional Issues

A. Article I: Ex Post Facto

i. Doe v. California Department of Justice, 173 Cal. App. 4th 1095 (2009)

Petitioners had successfully had their names removed from California’s public sex offender
registry website via a special statutory procedure in 2005. In 2006, the law was changed to require
that they once again be posted on that public web site. Their civil suit claiming equitable estoppel
and ex post facto violations was dismissed.

ii. Wallace v. State, 905 N.E.2d 371 (Ind. 2009)

Relying in part on the decision in Doe ». State, 189 P.3d 999 (Alaska 2008), the Indiana
Supreme Court held that the state’s sex offender registration and notification scheme was punitive
under the Mendoga-Martinez factors and, as such, application of its requirements to an offender
convicted and sentenced prior to the initial passage of the law was unconstitutional.

iii. Jensen v. State, 905 N.E.2d 384 (Ind. 2009)

Where petitioner was convicted and sentenced in 2001, and the only changes to the sex
offender registration and notification scheme since that time could faitly be characterized as ‘civil
and regulatory’ under the Mendoga-Martines factors, retroactive application of those amended
provisions was not a violation of the ex post facto clause.

iv. Finnicum v. State, 673 S.E.2d 604 (Ga. 2009)

Finnicum was convicted of a sex offense before Georgia enacted its initial sex offender
registration legislation. It was not a violation of the ex post facto clause for him to be required to
register.

v. ACLU v. Masto, 2:08-cv-00822-JCM-PAL (D. Nev., Oct. 7, 2008)

The District Court granted a permanent injunction prohibiting the retroactive application of
the sex offender registration laws passed in Nevada in 2007, concluding that they were punitive in
nature and therefore violated the ex post facto clause of the U.S. Constitution.

vi. State v. Ferguson, 896 N.E.2d 110 (Ohio 2008)

In a 4-3 decision, the Ohio Supreme Court found that the 2003 amendments to their sex
offender registration schetne were not punitive and, thetefore, did not violate the ex post facto
clause of the U.S. Constitution or the Retroactivity Clause of the Ohio Constitution. The majority
did not address the “intent-effects” test of Mendoga-Martines.
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vii. Doe v. State, 189 P.3d 999 (Alaska 2008)

A significant case out of Alaska involving the same plaintiff as Smith ». Doe, 538 U.S. 84
(2003). Here, the Alaska Supreme Court found—under its State Constitution--that Alaska’s sex
offender registration requirements were punitive, not regulatory, and as such could not be applied to
individuals such as Doe who committed their crimes prior to its enactment.

viii. Ridner v. State, 892 N.E.2d 151 (Ind. Ct. App. 2008)

Ridner was convicted of an offense in 2006 which, at the time, did not require registration as
a sex offendetr. The sex offender registration law was subsequently amended to require registration
for that conviction, and he was required to register. This was not an unconstitutional ex post facto
law as applied to him.

ix. Miranda v. Madigan, 888 N.E.2d 158 (TIL App. Ct. 2008)

Because the requirement to register as a sexual or violent offender is procedural, not
punitive, retroactive application was appropriate.

x. Statev. Jedlicka, 747 N.W.2d 580 (Minn. App. 2008)

Jedlicka was convicted of an offense that took place in 2003 and was required to register as a
predatory offender. After he was incarcerated for that offense, but prior to his release, the statute
" was amended to exclude him from registration. The Court held that the amendment should apply
retroactively, and that Jedlicka was no longer required to register.

xi. Doe v. Board, 882 N.E.2d 298 (Mass. 2008)

Doe was convicted of Rape in 1979, and finished serving his sentence and supervision in
1981. In 2003, he was notified that he was required to register as a sex offender based solely on his
1979 conviction (the current Massachusetts registration scheme was enacted in 1999). The court
held that the “retroactive imposition of the registration requirement without an opportunity to
overcome the conclusive presumption of dangerousness that flows solely from Doe’s conviction [|
violates his right to due process under the Massachusetts Constitution.”

xii. Buffington v. State, 2008 Ark. LEXIS 71 (Jan. 31, 2008)

Arkansas’ registration and notification components are regulatory and not a form of
punishment and his Habeas challenge to a requirement to register as a sex offender was rejected.

B. Fifth Amendment: Double Jeopardy
i. Minnesota v. Larson, 2008 Minn. App. Unpub. LEXIS 1525 (Dec. 30, 2008)
Larson was incarcerated for a failure to register conviction. Prior to his release, he was
approached three separate times with a sex offender registration form for his signature, and each

time he refused to sign the form. He was propetly convicted of two counts of failure to register as a
sex offender (the state had dismissed one of the charges pre-trial). Although the duty to register is a
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